AN EXILE RETURNS
A recent visitor to the village in search of his ancestors was Sidney Leys from London, Ontario where he has lived since 1972.  His father, also Sidney, originally worked in the Aberdeen shipyards as a rivet heater before becoming a milkman in town.  He died in 1967 aged 52 years.  His father, William, like many of his generation was a granite worker in Aberdeen where he worked as a stone cutter, having been born in Aberdeen on 21st October 1874, the son of William Leys, a blacksmith, who spent much of his married life in St Nicholas Parish in Aberdeen.  In 1881 he was staying at 26 Commerce Street along with his wife Mary Anne and their family; Mary Anne (9), Barbara T (8), William (6), Sarah (4) and Charles (9 months). 
William (blacksmith) was the son of Alexander Leys and Sarah Fowler who were married on 21st February 1839.  Alexander was a wood sawyer to trade which involved quite strenuous manual labour as most of the work was done at saw pits where the log to be cut was placed over a pit with one man standing above the log and the other underneath operating, between them, a long two handled saw to cut the log.  Many of these sawyers moved from place to place carrying out their work.  Alexander was working at his brother's at Kirkstyle, Kemnay when he "fell down at his sawpit".  He was aged just 42 years and was buried in the churchyard at Kemnay.
Alexander was the son of Charles Leys and Christian Winehouse who were married at Kemnay on 14th April 1811.  Charles was the son of Charles Leys, farmer, and Jane Chalmers and was born at Bendauch in the parish of Dyce and had come to Kemnay to carry on the wright's business following the death of George Stevenson in June 1800.  Christian was the daughter of Alexander Winehouse and Elspet Watt.  Alexander is described as gardener at Kemnay House where he worked for forty four years under two successive Burnett Lairds and was, by the finish, virtually acting as land steward.

Outwith his work on the estate Alexander Winehouse was a prominent figure in the Parish Kirk.  He was "elected to the eldership" on 2nd September 1795 and on 24th January 1802, following the resignation of Charles Dawson, schoolmaster, he was appointed Session Clerk.  He was appointed treasurer on 28th February 1808 following the death of Alexander Malcolm.

His elder son, George, graduated in Arts from Marischal College in 1801.  While serving as schoolmaster at Newhills he was licensed by the Presbytery of Aberdeen in 1807 and was ordained by the Presbytery of Forfar as missionary at Clova in 1811 and presented to the parish in 1818.  While at Newhills, he occupied the pulpit at Kemnay on several occasions.
